
 

 

                
 

 
AGENDA 

Regular Meeting 
July 5, 2016 - 7:30 p.m. 

 
City Council meeting packets are prepared several days prior to the meetings.  This information is reviewed 
and studied by the Councilmembers, eliminating lengthy discussions to gain basic understanding.                   
Timely action and short discussion on agenda items does not reflect lack of thought or analysis.                     
An informational packet is available for public inspection on our website at www.cityofevans.org and posted 
immediately on the bulletin board adjacent to the Council Chambers. 
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

2. PLEDGE 
 

3. ROLL CALL   Mayor:  John Morris 
 Mayor Pro-Tem:  Brian Rudy 
 Council:  Mark Clark 

 Sherri Finn 
 Lance Homann 
 Laura Speer 
 Jay Schaffer 
  

 
4. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION  

 
The City Council welcomes you here and thanks you for your time and concerns.  If you wish to 
address the City Council, this is the time set on the agenda for you to do so.  When you are 
recognized, please step to the podium, state your name and address then address City Council.    
Your comments will be limited to two (2) minutes.  The City Council may not respond to your 
comments this evening, rather they may take your comments and suggestions under advisement and 
your questions may be directed to the appropriate staff person for follow-up.  Thank you! 

 
5. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 
6. CONSENT AGENDA   

A. Approval of Minutes of the Regular Meeting of June 20, 2016 
 

7. OLD BUSINESS 
A.  Amending Resolution No. 26-2016, and authorizing the Mayor to sign a 

Revised Pipeline Right-of-way Agreement to Relocate an Existing Gas 
Pipeline Away from the Bank of the South Platte River Inside Riverside Park 
to Allow Rebuilding Riverside Park and Eliminating a Potential Public Hazard 

If you would like to address City Council,  
please place your name on the sign-up sheet  

located at the back of the council room.   
You will be recognized to speak during the  

"audience participation" portion of the agenda. 



 

It is the policy of the City of Evans that all programs and activities shall be accessible to, and usable by, 
persons with disabilities. Persons needing assistance shall contact the Safety & Risk Management Specialist 
at the City of Evans. Please provide three to five business day’s advance notice so we can adequately meet 
your needs. 

8. NEW BUSINESS 
A. Public Hearing – 2016 Budget 2nd Revision - Ordinance No. 653-16 

Amending Ordinance No. 632-15 and Appropriating Sum of Revenues and 
Fund Balances for the Amended 2016 City of Evans Budget (1st Reading) 

B. Resolution No. 27-2016 – Designating an Emergency Response Authority 
(DERA) for Hazardous Substance Incidents 

C. Resolution No. 28-2016 – Application for Homeland Security – EOC Phone  
System  

D. Approval of an Agreement Resolving Litigation and EQR Issues Related to 
Ashcroft Apartments 

E. Approval of an Agreement Resolving Litigation and EQR Issues Related to 
the Tuscany Subdivision  
 

 
9. REPORTS 

A. City Manager 
B. City Attorney 

 
10. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION (general comments) 

Please review the Audience Participation section listed at the beginning of the agenda for 
procedures on addressing City Council. 

 
11. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF EVANS – MISSION STATEMENT 
 

 “To deliver sustainable, citizen-driven services for the health, safety, and welfare 
of the community.” 



 
  
 

COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
  
 
DATE:   July 5, 2016 
 
AGENDA ITEM:   6.A 

   
SUBJECT: Approval of the Minutes June 20th City Council Meeting 
 
PRESENTED BY:  City Clerk  
___________________________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Approval of minutes. 
  
FINANCIAL SUMMARY: 
 
N/A
  
RECOMMENDATION: 
       
N/A
  
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
 
"I move to approve the minutes as presented." 
  
 



 

               
 

 
MINUTES 

EVANS CITY COUNCIL  
June 20, 2016  

 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
  Mayor Morris called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. 

 
PLEDGE 
 
ROLL CALL    
 
 

 Present: Mayor Morris, Mayor Pro-Tem Rudy, Council Members Clark,   
   Finn, Homann, Schaffer, and Speer 
 
PROCLMATIONS 

A. Stampede Proclamation  
 
Mayor Morris read the Proclamation and Mayor Pro-Tem Rudy presented it to 
Katie Geist, Promotions Coordinator for the Greeley Stampede.  
Ms. Geist thanked the City Council for the Proclamation supporting the Stampede. 

 
INTRODUCTIONS  

B. Introduction of ACE Interns 
  Aden Hogan, City Manager, and Raul Rodriquez, City Safety and Risk   
  Management Specialist & ADA Coordinator introduced the ACE interns 

 
Mayor Morris welcomed the interns to the City and spoke about his support for 
the program.  

 
AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION  
             There was no audience participation.  

 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

A. Raegan Robb, Evans City Clerk, explained that item 9.A, under Old Business, 
concerning ARB Nicon Subdivision Preliminary & Final Plat needed to be 
removed from the agenda.  
 
Council Member Schaffer made the motion, seconded by Mayor Pro-Tem Rudy, 
to approve the agenda, as amended.   
The motion passed with all voting in favor thereof. 



EVANS CITY COUNCIL   
June 20, 2016  
Page 2 
 
 

CONSENT AGENDA   
B. Approval of Minutes of the Regular Meeting of June 7, 2016 

Schaffer moved, Clark 2nd. Passed.  
 
Council Member Schaffer made the motion, seconded by Council Member Clark, 
to approve the agenda, as amended.  
The motion passed with all voting in favor thereof. 
 
 

OLD BUSINESS 
C. ARB Nicon Subdivision Preliminary & Final Plat 

 
NEW BUSINESS 

A. Resolution No. 25-2016 – Acquiring a 1.63-acre Parcel from Noble Energy, 
Located Northwest of the Intersection of 40th Street and Pueblo Street to be 
Used for Access, Parking and other Recreation Purposes as Part of Riverside 
Park 

 
Council Member Speer recused herself from voting on the agenda item, due to a 
possible conflict of interest, but asked to remain for the presentation.  
 
Gary Wilson, Project Manager, City Flood Recovery Unit, presented the 
Resolution and gave a brief slide show presentation to City Council showing the 
1.63-acre parcel recommended for acquisition from Noble Energy.  According to 
Mr. Wilson, the parcel is located northwest of the Intersection of 40th Street and 
Pueblo Street, and staff was recommending the acquisition for access, parking and 
other recreation purposes at Riverside Park. 
 
Mayor Morris discussed his support for the project and talked about the neighboring  
CDOT property that the City plans on acquiring.  
 
The Mayor confirmed that the parcel from Noble Energy was being purchased from 
Funds from the Conservation Trust Fund. 
 
Mr. Wilson confirmed that the funding source was the Conservation Trust Fund.    
 

   Council Member Speer asked Mayor Morris if the public would be allowed to speak 
   ono this agenda item. 
 
   Mayor Morris asked for public comment. 

 
Gail Ford, from 3927 Empire Street, discussed her concerns about access onto the 



EVANS CITY COUNCIL   
June 20, 2016  
Page 3 
 

property and asked that the City not use it for primary access.  
 
Council Member Homann asked who the access road belongs to.  
 
Mr. Wilson, referred to the overhead map and talked about the property. He 
explained that the access through this property would become the City’s, but it would 
only be used for maintenance vehicles and not intended for major access.  
 
Council Member Homann made the motion, seconded by Council Mewmber Finn, to 
adopt Resolution No. 25-2016 – Acquiring a 1.63-acre Parcel from Noble Energy, 
Located Northwest of the Intersection of 40th Street and Pueblo Street to be used for 
Access, Parking and other Recreation Purposes as Part of Riverside Park.   
The motion passed with all voting in favor thereof. 

 
  

B. Resolution No. 26-2016 – Authorizing the Mayor to Sign a Pipeline Right-of-
way Agreement and Vacating an Existing Easement to Permit the Relocation of 
an Existing Gas Pipeline Away from the Bank of the S. Platte River Inside 
Riverside Park to Allow Rebuilding Riverside Park and Eliminating a Potential 
Public Hazard 

 
 
   Council Member Speer recused herself from voting on this subject, due to   
   a possible conflict of interest, but asked to remain for the presentation. 
 
   Council Member Finn disclosed that her husband used to work for DCP   
   Midland.  
 
   The City Attorney, did not feel that Council Member Finn had a conflict of interest. 
 

Mr. Wilson discussed the location of a gas line and gas well locations in Riverside 
Park, owned by DCP Midland.  He discussed the Resolution which would allow DCP 
to vacate the current line, but provide them right-of-way to realign the pipeline away 
from Riverside Park.  Mr. Wilson explained that this is non-exclusive right-of-way 
and DCP Midland would encumbering the costs.   
 
Council Member Speer asked about the pipeline would remain above the water table. 
 
Mr. Wilson discussed the details of the proposed project with the City Council 
Members.  
 
Council Member Clark made the motion, seconded by Mayor Pro-Tem Rudy to adopt 
Resolution No. 26-2016 – Authorizing the Mayor to Sign a Pipeline Right-of-way 



EVANS CITY COUNCIL   
June 20, 2016  
Page 4 
 
 

Agreement and Vacating an Existing Easement to Permit the Relocation of an 
Existing Gas Pipeline Away from the Bank of the S. Platte River Inside Riverside 
Park to Allow Rebuilding Riverside Park and Eliminating a Potential Public Hazard. 
The motion passed with all voting in favor thereof. 
 
 

C. Approval of a Preliminary Budget Revision for a Transfer to the Evans 
Redevelopment Agency 

    
   Jacque Troudt, City Finance Manager, presented a preliminary budget revision to loan 
   $481,000 dollars to the Evans Redevelopment Agency (ERA) for the purchase of  
   property in the ERA’s site plan.    
    
   Mayor Morris summarized the project and voiced his support to purchase the  
   property. 
    
   Council Member Speer explained why she was opposed to the loan and the purchase 
   of the property. 
 
   Council Member Schaffer made the motion, seconded by Mayor Pro-Tem Rudy 

to approve a preliminary budget revision for a transfer to the Evans Redevelopment 
Agency.  The motion passed on a 6-1 roll call with Council Member Speer opposed. 

 
 

C. Approval of Construction Agreement for Construction of the Consolidated 
Wastewater Treatment Facility, Lift Station, and Force Main 

 
Jessica Gonifas, Deputy City Manager, and Keith Meyer, PE, Construction and 
Consultant Project Manager from Ditesco, summarized the plans for the consolidated 
wastewater treatment plant (WWTP) for the construction of a new 2.88 MGD lift 
station, force main and wastewater treatment plant at the current Hill-n-Park site.    
Mr. Meyer summarized the project design, permitting processes, and financing 
phases that have been completed.  He spoke about the new WWTP that will treat 
consolidated flows from both the Evans and Hill-n-Park basins.  According to Mr. 
Meyer, the WWTP has been designed to be protected from the 100 and 500 year 
flood events on the South Platte River basin through flood proofing measures 
specifically elevating the infrastructure to avoid flood impacts. 
 
Mr. Meyer spoke about the cost of the project and explained that the final contract 
price is a guaranteed maximum price (GMP) which fixes the maximum amount of 
money the contractor will be paid for the WWTP construction.  He stated that Garney 
Construction’s GMP proposal for the Consolidated WWTP is $37,792,213.00.  This 
cost was developed through competitively bidding the various project materials, 



EVANS CITY COUNCIL   
June 20, 2016  
Page 5 
 

equipment, labor and subcontractor work necessary to build the WWTP.  Mr. Meyer 
explained that cost tracking and reporting will continue through the construction 
phase and the costs of the work will be reported monthly, and tracked to ensure 
transparency in the project.  The GMP will be managed by the Consultant Project 
Manager who provides routine reports on the overall program budget to our 
Wastewater Team.  
 
Additionally, he explained that $500,000 of the GMP has been set aside for sludge 
removal in the existing lagoons. Staff believes this cost can be saved or paid 
separately at a later date when the sludge removal volumes are better known and 
defined.   
 
Mr. Meyer explained that construction of WWTP improvements are scheduled to 
begin in late July 2016 after contracts are fully executed and the preconstruction 
phase is complete. He also added that the project will satisfy requirements under 
Davis-Bacon Act.  Therefore, staff is recommending a final construction agreement 
and contract value of $37,292,213 with Garney Construction. 
 
Council Member Schaffer asked about the procedural question and if the dollar 
amount should be in the motion.   
 
Mr. Krob explained that Council could add a dollar amount not to exceed 
$37,292,213. 
 
Mayor Morris asked Mr. Meyers about the plant being gravity fed and the single 
pump station planned for the project.   
 
Mr. Meyer explained that the flow to the treatment plant was downhill, but there is 
one processing plants along the new line which is necessary for maintenance.   
 
Council Member Speer explained why she would abstain from voting on this topic. 
 
Virgil Rollag, 3311 Valmont, expressed concerns about the design of the plant 
needing to pump wastewater uphill to the new location.  
 
Mayor Morris and Mr. Meyer explained that there would be only be one lift station 
built for the new project. 
 
Council Member Clark made the motion, seconded by Mayor Pro-Tem Rudy to 
approve the construction agreement with Garney Construction, with a dollar amount 
not to exceed $37,292,213.  The motion passed with all voting in favor thereof. 

 
 

 



EVANS CITY COUNCIL   
June 20, 2016  
Page 6 
 
 

REPORTS 
A. City Manager 

 
Mr. Hogan updated that City Council about the plans for the Community Complex to 
a ballot drop off location for Primary Election. 
 
He spoke about the bridge construction project on 47th Street to 65th Avenue that will 
close 65th Avenue for three to four days at the end of June.  Mayor Morris asked 
about residents in the Arrowhead subdivision traveling eastbound on 37th Street.  
 
Dawn explained that there will still be access for residents only, but they will have 
detours setup around the bridge. 

 
B. City Attorney 

 
    Mr. Krob update the City Council about the upcoming CML Conference the week 
    of June 20th.  He also explained that the matters of the Ashcroft settlement and the 
    issues surrounding the equivalent residential units (EQRs) would be discussed in  
    executive session. 
 
 

AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION  
   There was no audience participation.  
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION  

      A. To Determine Positions Relative to Matters that May be Subject to 
 Negotiations, Developing Strategy for Negotiations, and Instructing 
 Negotiators, Pursuant to C.R.S. 24-6-402(4)(e) 

 
Council Member Schaffer made the motion, seconded to Council Member Speer, to 
determine positions relative to matters that may be subject to negotiations, 
developing strategy for negotiations, and instructing negotiators, pursuant to C.R.S. 
24-6-402(4)(e).  The motion passed with all voting in favor thereof. 
 
The City Council adjourned into executive session at 8:23 p.m. 
 
The executive session concluded at 9:13 p.m. 
 
Scott Krob entered into the record that the matters discussed in executive session 
were subject to attorney-client privilege and within the scope of the referenced state 
statutes. 

 



EVANS CITY COUNCIL   
June 20, 2016  
Page 7 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
    The regular meeting adjourned at 9:15 p.m. 
 

 

 
 
 
 



 
 

  
 CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
 
DATE: July 5, 2016 
 
AGENDA ITEM: 7.A 
 
SUBJECT: Amending Resolution No. 26-2016, authorizing the Mayor to sign a 

Revised Pipeline Right-of-way Agreement to Relocate an Existing 
Gas Pipeline Away from the Bank of the South Platte River Inside 
Riverside Park to Allow Rebuilding Riverside Park and Eliminating 
a Potential Public Hazard 

 
PRESENTED BY: Gary Wilson, Project Manager 
 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 
 
On June 20, 2016, the City Council authorized a pipeline right-of-way exchange to replace an 
existing right-of-way located inside the berm along the bank of the S. Platte River in Riverside 
Park. The right-of-way exchange was done to allow the City to implement plans to rebuild 
Riverside Park and eliminate a potential hazard. Due to the discovery of an electric line located 
too close to the pipeline, staff is requesting that Council authorize a revised the gas line alignment.  
 
After approval of the right-of-way on June 20th, DCP went to the site to stake the alignment in 
preparation for construction and discovered that a buried electrical line was located only three feet 
from the new pipeline alignment along the north side of 42nd Street. It is not safe to locate a gas 
line so close to an electrical line. This proposal will shift the pipeline alignment by moving it 
approximately 30 feet to the south to provide an adequate separation.  
 
The location of the electrical line was not known previously because information concerning 
utilities in Riverside Park is not well documented. By chance, the line had been flagged by Xcel 
for another purpose and was discovered by DCP’s survey crew. 
 
This change only affects the alignment of the pipeline along 42nd Street. The balance of the 
alignment is the same as approved by Council on June 20th.  The line will cross the electrical line 
as it turns north along the west side of the ballfields, however, a crossing such this is acceptable 
as long as separation is maintained.  
 
DCP will call for utility locates again before construction to make sure there are no other utility 
conflicts.  In research done for the Riverside Park project, no other utilities have been identified 
that could cause any conflicts. 
 
 
FINANCIAL: 
 
As recommended previously, there is a significant financial benefit to the City from the proposed 
right-of-way exchange. The City will benefit from not paying for any part of the costly relocation 



 
 

of the gas line needed to implement plans for rebuilding Riverside Park. Noble Energy will fund 
the entire reconstruction of the new pipeline and has funded the survey and plans needed to build 
the new line. Another financial benefit to the City is related to disaster response costs. A future 
catastrophic flood could damage the berm as occurred in 2013 flood and the pipeline, resulting in 
added emergency response and repair costs and time.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
  
Staff recommends City Council authorize the Mayor to execute the revised right-of-way 
agreement. 
 
 
SUGGESTED MOTIONS:  
 
“I move to approve the revised pipeline right-of-way agreement adopted under Resolution      
No. 26-2016.” 
 
 
“I move to deny the revised pipeline right-of-way agreement adopted under Resolution 
No.      26-2016.” 
 
 
 



 
 

 

Existing Gas Line to 
remain 

Existing Gas Line to be 
vacated, 20’ width Proposed Gas Line 

shifted 30’ south 

storm 

propose storm 

existing power line 



DCP Midland 
Right-of-way 

Exchange 

Existing Gas Line 
to remain

Existing Gas Line to be 
vacated, 20’ widthProposed Gas Line

shifted 30’ south

storm

propose storm

existing power line



 
 

PIPELINE RIGHT-OF-WAY GRANT 
 
 
FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION OF THE SUM OF Ten and More ($10.00+) DOLLARS for the pipeline to be 
constructed under the terms hereof, to be paid after a survey establishing the route of the line has been completed, and 
before construction is commenced,   
 I/WE, 
  
 
 
 
hereinafter referred to as “Grantor” (whether one or more) does hereby grant, sell, convey, and warrant to DCP 
Midstream, LP, whose local address is 3026 4th Avenue, Greeley, CO 80631, its successors and assigns, hereinafter 
referred to as “Grantee”, the right, privilege and non-exclusive easement, Fifty (50) feet in width for a temporary 
easement for initial construction for this line only with additional temporary workspace for boring and a permanent 
non-exclusive easement of  Ten(10) feet in width, for the purpose of a single pipeline and from time to time, operating, 
inspecting, maintaining, protecting, repairing, replacing, and removing a single pipeline or other appurtenances, for the 
transportation of oil, gas, petroleum products, water, and any products and derivatives of any of the foregoing, and any 
combinations and mixtures of any of the foregoing, upon and along a route through the following described land 
located in WELD County, State of  COLORADO, to wit: 
 
Township 5 North, Range 65 West of the 6th P.M. 
Section 29: Multiple parcels; see attached Exhibit “A” 
Said temporary construction easement and permanent non-exclusive pipeline easement being more particularly 
described on Exhibit “A” attached hereto and made a part hereof. 
 
Together with the right of ingress and egress to and from said pipeline, on, over, and across said land and adjacent land 
of Grantor.  
 
It is agreed that the pipeline to be laid under this grant shall be constructed a minimum depth of forty-eight (48) inches 
below the surface of the ground to permit normal cultivation at the time of construction, and Grantor shall have the 
right to fully use and enjoy the above described premises subject to the rights herein granted 
 
Grantee agrees to reclaim those lands disturbed during construction as nearly as practicable to its original condition 
and reseed the same as soon as possible. Upon completion of the pipeline installation and reseeding activities, said 
temporary construction easement shall terminate.  After the initial construction of the pipeline DCP may require, from 
time to time, additional temporary work space parallel and adjacent to the permanent non-exclusive easement in order 
to exercise the rights herein granted.  Grantor agrees to DCP’s use of a temporary work space as reasonably necessary 
to conduct such tasks. 
 
 
Grantee shall have the right to clear all trees, undergrowth and other obstructions from the herein granted permanent 
right-of-way, and Grantor agrees not to build, construct or create any buildings, structures or engineering works on the 
herein granted right-of-way that will interfere with the normal operation and maintenance of said line.  
 
Grantee agrees to pay to the owners and to any tenant, as their interests may be, any and all damages to crops, timber, 
fences, drain tile, or other improvements on said premises that may arise from the exercise of the rights herein granted; 
provided, however, that after the pipeline has been constructed hereunder, Grantee shall not be liable for damages 
caused on the easement by keeping said easement clear of trees, undergrowth, and brush in the exercise of the rights 
herein granted.  Any payment due hereunder may be made direct to the said Grantor or any one of them. The initial 
consideration paid by Grantee to Grantor includes any and all damages that may be sustained by original construction 
of the pipeline within the easement area, including without limitation, cutting trees and damages to surface, fences or 
any other property owned by Grantor. If the property is leased, Grantee will settle actual damages with the tenant.  
 
Grantee further agrees that, if at any time, the pipeline settles or causes any settling in the area of the pipeline, it will 
make all necessary repairs at Grantee’s sole cost and expense and pay damages to crops within a reasonable period of 
time. 
 
The terms, conditions, and provisions of the contract shall extend to and be binding upon the heirs, executors, 
administrators, personal representatives, successors, and assigns of the parties hereto.  
 
TO HAVE AND TO HOLD said easement, rights, estates, and privileges unto Grantee, its successors and assigns, as 
long as said easement is used for the purposes granted herein. 
 
 

City of Evans 
1100 37th Street 
Evans, CO 80620-2036 



 
 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantor has executed this instrument this _______ day of _____________________, 2016 
signed, sealed, and delivered in the presence of: 
                                                                                                   
City of Evans 
 
By:__________________________________    
 
Title:_________________________________                        
  
                                                                                           
                                                                              
 

                                                                                     ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
 
STATE OF ______________________________    ) 
 
                                                                    )                                ss.                                                                                               
                                          
COUNTY OF ____________________________    ) 
 
Before Me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, on this day personally 
appeared,___________________________________________________ known to me to be the same person(s) who 
executed the within and foregoing instrument, and acknowledged to me they executed the same as their free and 
voluntary act and deed for the purposes and consideration therein expressed. 
 
 

Given Under My Hand and Seal of Office, this _______day of ____________________, A.D. 2016. 
 
 
 
My commission expires:__________________                        ______________________________________ 
                                                                                                    Notary Public 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 





1 

COUNCIL COMMUNICATION

DATE: 

AGENDA ITEM: 

SUBJECT:  

PRESENTED BY: 

July 5, 2016 

8.A

2016 Budget 2nd Revision - Ordinance No. 653-16 – Amending 
Ordinance No. 632-15 and Appropriating Sum of Revenues and 
Fund Balances for the Amended 2016 City of Evans Budget       
(1st Reading) 

Jacque Troudt, CPA, Finance Manager 

________________________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

The City Council approves specific items during the year which require an amendment to the 
adopted budget as required by the City of Evans Charter (Section 7.3 & 8.6).  In this case, the 
revenues, expenditures (or expenses in enterprise funds) and transfers have been previously 
approved by the City Council.  Staff action is usually taken on these items immediately following 
Council direction.  Budget revisions are scheduled at quarterly intervals throughout the year in order 
to facilitate a flexible and accurate City budget.  

Ordinance No. 653-16 is the second revision to the 2016 Operating and Capital Budget.      
The original 2016 Budget was approved by Ordinance No. 632-15 on October 20th 2015. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY: 

The Budget Ordinance heading summarizes the changes to revenues, expenditures, and 
transfers by fund. Some of the items have been previously approved by the City Council, those items 
requiring additional explanation will be described below. Attachment “A” identifies the details of 
each council action and Attachment “B” identifies the net impact on the revised budget. The 
following descriptions are listed in the same order as the funds on Attachment “A” and include the 
items which were not approved as a preliminary budget revision during the quarter. Many of the 
items included are carry forward items, which were related to a specific project(s) appropriated for 
in the 2015 budget, but were not finished in that fiscal year. Since appropriations lapse, the budget 
for these items needs to be appropriated (carried forward) in 2016. 

The General Fund includes the following proposed revision items: 



2 
 

 
Item 1.1 will carry forward $70,000 to continue the sales tax auditing program. 
 
Item 1.2 will recognize the grant extension for the Evans Long Range Planner CDBG-DR grant for 
$46,293. 
 
Item 1.3 will spend $10,000 of Traffic Calming Funds to install an LED 4 Way Stop at 17th Avenue 
and 32nd Street. 
 
Item 1.9 will recognize a transfer to the ERA for purchase of redevelopment property, of $481,000. 
 
The Conservation Trust Fund includes an item to purchase future park land for $15,000. 
 
The CIP – Streets fund includes an item to recognize a City match for a DOLA grant of $100,000. 
This grant will assist with permanent road repairs on 49th Street, Brantner Avenue and Industrial 
Parkway. 
 
Also included in this fund is a request for $1,754 to replace a damaged traffic signal for which 
insurance recovery proceeds were received.  

 
The Water fund includes a portion of the Tuscany non-potable and detention pond design, $15,944. 
 
Revision items for the Waste Water fund include:  

1.6 to recognize the maximum amount of the debt authorized by Council, $41,429,000. 
1.7 increasing the expense by $3,880 for a carryforward item for retainage held.  
1.8 represents $227,098 of anticipated revenue with the rate increase included in the 2016 

budget, and $123,413 of additional expense for the debt payments due in 2016. 
 
The Storm Drainage fund will also have an increase in expenses for a portion of the Tuscany non-
potable and detention pond design, $23,915. 
 

The Finance Committee reviewed the proposed budget revision at their last meeting and did 
not recommend any changes, and these items were reviewed at a City Council work session. 

 
Attachment “A” identifies the detailed changes for the proposed revisions to the 2016 

Budget. The details are also summarized in the heading of the appropriation ordinance.   
 
Attachment “B” includes the Beginning Balance by Fund based on audited balances.  

 
Details of all financial items are available for Council or Citizens upon request from the 

Finance Department by contacting Jacque Troudt at 970-475-1127 or jtroudt@evanscolorado.gov. 
__________________________________________________________________ 



3 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of the ordinance.  
 
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 

I move to approve Ordinance No. 653-16 on first reading. 
 

I move to deny approval of Ordinance No. 653-16 on first reading. 
 

 



   

CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 653-16 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE 2016 BUDGET; INCREASING 
GENERAL FUND REVENUES BY $46,293, APPROPRIATING GENERAL 
FUND EXPENDITURES OF $607,293, APPROPRIATING CONSERVATION 
TRUST FUND EXPENDITURES OF $15,000, INCREASING CIP STREETS 
FUND REVENUES BY $1,754, APPROPRIATING CIP STREETS FUND 
EXPENDITURES OF $101,754, APPROPRIATING WATER FUND 
EXPENSES OF $15,944, INCREASING WASTE WATER FUND REVENUES 
BY $41,656,098, APPROPRIATING WASTE WATER FUND EXPENSES OF 
$41,556,293, APPROPRIATING STORM DRAINAGE FUND EXPENSES OF 
$23,915. 

 
WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 8.6 of the Evans Home Rule Charter the Council 

may make additional appropriations by ordinance during the fiscal year; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Manager has certified that additional funds are available for 
appropriations in each fund from actual and anticipated revenues of the current year and prior 
year cash reserves; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council is advised that certain revenues, expenditures and transfers 
must be approved by ordinance. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
EVANS, COLORADO THE FOLLOWING: 
 

Section 1:  Upon the City Manager’s certification that there are current and prior year 
revenues available for appropriation in the General Fund, Conservation Trust Fund, Capital 
Projects – Streets Fund, Water Fund, Waste Water Fund, Storm Drainage Fund, and the City 
Council hereby makes supplemental appropriations as itemized in Attachment “A” attached 
hereto. 
 

Section 2:  The City Council hereby authorizes and directs the City Manager to enter into 
such contracts and execute such documents on behalf of the City as may be necessary and 
customary to expend the funds hereby appropriated for all operations, capital projects and debt 
within this budget as amended in accordance with the requirements of the Home Rule Charter 
and the City’s Financial Policies. 
 

Section 3:  The adoption of this Ordinance will promote the health, safety and general 
welfare of the Evans community. 
 

Section 4:  If any provision of this Ordinance or portion thereof is held by a court of 
competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unconstitutional, such invalidity or unconstitutionality 
shall not affect any other provision which can be given effect without the invalid portion. 
 



  515-11 2 

Section 5:  All prior ordinances, resolutions, or other acts, or parts thereof, by the City of 
Evans in conflict with this Ordinance are hereby repealed, except that this repealer shall not be 
construed to revive any previously repealed or expired act, ordinance or resolution, or part 
thereof. 
 

Section 6:  This Ordinance shall be effective following the adoption by Section 8.5 of the 
Home Rule Charter. 
 

PASSED and APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Evans 
on this 5th day of July, 2016. 

 
CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 

 
        By:      

Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
     

City Clerk 
 
 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED ON SECOND READING this 19th day of July, 

2016. 
 

CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 

 
        By:      

Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
     

City Clerk 



















 
 
 COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
  
 
DATE:   July 5, 2016 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  8.B 

 
SUBJECT:   Approval of Resolution No. 27-2016 designating Evans Fire 

Protection District as the DERA for the City of Evans. 
 
PRESENTED BY:  David Burns, Emergency Management Coordinator 
_____________________________________________________________________________  
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 
 
C.R.S. § 29-22-102(3)(a) requires the City of Evans, Colorado (the “City”) to designate, by 
resolution, an Emergency Response Authority for hazardous substance incidents occurring within the 
limits of the City 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The Designated Emergency Response Authority (DERA) that is currently in place now has not been 
updated since 1996. Since then, Evans Fire has separated from the City and formed a special district. 
Evans Fire Protection Distract is better equipped and qualified to mitigate hazardous material 
incidents. This resolution will designate Evans Fire Protection District as the DERA for the City of 
Evans. The City of Evans and the Office of Emergency Management will still have a significate role 
in supporting Evans Fire in the event of a hazardous material incident.  

   
FINANCIAL SUMMARY:  
 
There is no financial impact to the City designating Evans Fire Protection District as the DERA 
for the City   
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council approve Resolution -2016  
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
 
 “ I move to adopt Resolution No. 27-2016 designating the Evans Fire Protection District as the 

DERA for the City of Evans”  
 
 “ I move to deny Resolution No. 27-2016 designating the Evans Fire Protection District as the 

DERA for the City of Evans”   



CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 27 -2016 
 

A RESOLUTION DESIGNATING AN EMERGENCY RESPONSE AUTHORITY 
FOR HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCE INCIDENTS 

 
WHEREAS, C.R.S. § 29-22-102(3)(a) requires the City of Evans, Colorado (the “City”) to 
designate, by resolution, an Emergency Response Authority for hazardous substance incidents 
occurring within the limits of the City; and 
 
WHEREAS, an Emergency Response Authority so designated shall be responsible for the 
emergency response to a hazardous substance incident occurring within the City; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Evans Fire Protection District possesses the manpower, partnerships, and 
agreements necessary to carry out the requirements of the Emergency Response Authority,  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
EVANS, COLORADO AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1.  The Evans Fire Protection District shall constitute as the Designated Emergency 
Response Authority within the City of Evans pursuant to C.R.S. § 29-22-102 et seq. 
 
2. Existing Resolutions or parts of Resolutions covering the same matters as embraced by 
this Resolution are hereby repealed and all Resolutions or parts of Resolutions inconsistent 
with this Resolution are hereby repealed. 
 
 

PASSED and APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Evans on this 5th  day of July, 2016. 

CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 

 

        By:      

Mayor 

ATTEST: 

     

City Clerk 



 
 
 COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
  
 
DATE:   July 5, 2016 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  8.C 

 
SUBJECT:   Approval of Resolution No. 28-2016 approving staff to apply for, 

accept, and execute a State Homeland Security Grant for the 
purchase communication equipment for the Evans Emergency 
Operation Center. 

 
PRESENTED BY:  David Burns, Emergency Management Coordinator 
_____________________________________________________________________________  
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 
 
Applying for left over grant from the 2014 State Homeland Security Grant. This project will include 
the purchase of (10) IP phones, (10) licenses and two switches. The phones will be designated for 
use in the EOC.   
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Need: Based upon the After Action Reports from the 2013 floods and EOC exercises, not having a 
phone system with the EOC was a significant need. Currently, staff utilizes personal and work cell 
phones while working in the EOC. Some of the issues that come from using cell phones in the EOC 
is designated phone numbers for support functions. These numbers will change every time staffing 
changes. Making it difficult for staff to communicate within the EOC and for outside agency to 
effectively communicate with the EOC. Also, our contingences options are limited since cell phones 
are typical utilized as a buck system.  
 
Phone: Office of Emergency Management has been working with the IT department on what is out 
best options for phones. Kevin, recommended that we go with the IP phones that will run through the 
internet. This the phone system that we are currently using within the city. The system can be mobile 
and can function in the backup EOC is compromised while also having the ability to keep all the 
phone numbers the same no matter which EOC is activated. We have estimates of just over $3,500 
for phones, license, switches. This doesn’t include cables or shipping. 
  
Grant: There are funds that are available from the 2014 State Homeland Security Grant. The region 
has to spend all the money by the end of July or they have to return the reaming funds. Leading to the 
opening of special projects such as this one. This grant is a “0” match for the city.  
 
FINANCIAL SUMMARY:  
 
There is no financial impact to the City since there is no match for the City and the grant covers 
100% of the project.   



 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council approve Resolution -2016  
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
 
 “ I move to adopt Resolution No. 28-2016 to authorizing staff to apply for, accept, and execute 

a State Homeland Security Grant for the purchase communication equipment for the 
Evans Emergency Operation Center and not to exceed $5,000”  

 
 “ I move to deny Resolution No. 28-2016 authorizing staff to apply for, accept, and execute a 

State Homeland Security Grant for the purchase communication equipment for the Evans 
Emergency Operation Center and not to exceed $5,000”  

  



CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 28-2016 
 
 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY TO APPLY FOR, ACCEPT, AND EXECUTE 

A STATE HOMELAND SECURITY GRANT THROUGH THE STATE OF COLORADO 
FOR THE PURCHASE OF COMMUNICATION EQUIPMENT FOR THE EVANS 

EMERGENCY OPERATION CENTER IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $5,000. 
 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Evans, Colorado, pursuant to Colorado 
statute and the Evans City Charter, is vested with the authority of administering the affairs of the 
City of Evans, Colorado; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Evans Emergency Operation Center supports response and recovery 
operations during and after a disaster; and 
 
WHEREAS, the State Homeland Security Grant Program (SHSP) is a core assistance program that 
provides funds to build capabilities at the State, local, tribal, and territorial levels, to enhance our 
national resilience to absorb disruptions and rapidly recover from incidents both natural and 
manmade as well as to implement the goals and objectives included in State homeland security 
strategies and initiatives in their State Preparedness Report (SPR) 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
EVANS, COLORADO AS FOLLOWS: 
 

The City Council hereby authorizes Dave Burns, Emergency Management Coordinator, to apply 
for, accept, and execute a State Homeland Security Grant for the purchase communication 
equipment for the Evans Emergency Operation Center in an amount not to exceed $5,000.  

 
 

PASSED and APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Evans on this 5th day of July, 2016. 

CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 

 

        By:      

Mayor 

ATTEST: 

     

City Clerk 



________________________________________________________________________ 
 

COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
DATE:    July 5, 2016 
 
AGENDA ITEM: 8.D 
 
SUBJECT: AGREEMENT RESOLVING LITIGATION AND EQR ISSUES 

RELATED TO ASHCROFT APARTMENTS 
 
PRESENTED BY: Scott Krob, City Attorney 
   Fred Starr, City Public Works Director 
________________________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 
 
The Agreement that is before the Council for its consideration this evening, if approved, 
will resolved a couple of issues involving Scott Ehrlich and his Ashcroft Apartments 
development. 
 
EQRs.  Through an agreement with the previous Evans City Staff, Scott Ehrlich 
dedicated 120 EQRs to the Ashcroft Apartments, with the understanding that after a year 
of actual water use by the Apartments, the City would evaluate the amount of water used 
and compare it to the 120 EQRs dedicated and, to the extent there was an excess number 
of EQRs, the City would give Mr. Ehrlich credit for that excess.  The year of use and the 
Staff’s evaluation have been completed.  They show that the actual use is equivalent to 
approximately 65 EQRs.  Accordingly, by this Agreement, the City would commit to 
allow Mr. Ehrlich, or one of his affiliated entities to use the excess 55 EQRs in 
developing a piece of commercial property he owns on the Northwest corner of 37th 
Street and 35th Avenue.  Mr. Ehrlich has an additional 13.75 EQRs in an existing water 
bank account with the City, which he would also be permitted to use to develop the 
commercial property. 
 
Pending Litigation.  In addition, the Agreement would resolve litigation initiated by Mr. 
Ehrlich’s company, Ashcroft Apartments, LLC, against the City.  In the litigation 
Ashcroft asserted that the City had charged the Ashcroft Apartments development too 
much for park impact fees. According to an affidavit filed by Mr. Ehrlich in the litigation, 
he was advised by City staff that the amount of the park impact fees would be $28,000 
less than the amount ultimately assessed against his project and which Mr. Ehrlich paid.   
Under the Agreement, the City would reimburse Ashcroft Apartments, LLC for this 
$28,000. 
 
In the pending litigation, Mr. Ehrlich seeks $258,000 in credits against the $796,000 of 
park impact fees he paid, based on certain park and recreation facilities that were 
constructed as part of the Ashcroft Apartments, such as trails, parks, playgrounds, and a 



swimming pool.  City staff has concluded that the creation of those park and recreation 
facilities will take some of the burden off of other park and recreation facilities within the 
City and therefore some credit is appropriate.  City staff have agreed with Mr. Ehrlich 
that the appropriate amount of that credit is $55,000.  Under the Agreement, the City 
would reimburse Ashcroft Apartments, LLC this $55,000 in addition to the $28,000 
discussed above, for a total of $83,000.  The pending litigation would be dismissed and 
all parties would bear their own attorneys fees and costs.  If the Agreement is not 
approved, the case will go to trial July 25 through 28, 2016. 
________________________________________________________________________ 
FINANCIAL SUMMARY: 
 
The proposed settlement will cost the City of Evans $83,000, which will be paid out of 
the park impact fee fund.  However, it will save the City substantial costs that would 
otherwise be incurred in taking the matter to trial.  It also eliminates the risk of a larger 
judgment being entered against the City if Ashcroft Apartments were to prevail at trial.  
Finally, it encourages development of commercial property within the City. 
________________________________________________________________________ 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council approve the Agreement and authorize the Mayor 
to sign it, and that that City Council further approve a corresponding budget amendment 
to allow the payment of the $83,000 from the park impact fee fund. 
________________________________________________________________________ 
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
 
“I move to approve the Agreement regarding EQRs associated with Ashcroft Apartments 
and settling pending litigation between the City and Ashcroft Apartments, LLC, to 
authorize the Mayor to sign such agreement, and to revise the City’s budget to authorize 
payment of the $83,000 provided for in the Agreement from the park impact fee fund. “ 
 
“I move not to approve the Agreement. 
________________________________________________________________________  



AGREEMENT AND MUTUAL RELEASE 
 
 

I. PATRIES 
 

 THIS AGREEMENT AND MUTUAL RELEASE (“the Agreement”) is made by, 
between, and among the CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO, a Colorado home rule municipality 
(“the City”)  
and  
ASHCROFT HEIGHTS APARTMENTS, LLC, THE VILLAGE AT ASHCROFT, LLC, 
[insert name of owner of the Commercial Parcel], and SCOTT EHRLICH (collectively “the 
Ehrlich Affiliated Entities”). 
 

The City and the Ehrlich Affiliated Entities are collectively referred to herein as “the 
Parties”.  

 
II. RECITALS 

 
A. The City and Ashcroft Heights Apartments, LLC are currently involved in 
litigation  in the District Court of Weld County, Colorado, captioned Ashcroft Heights 
Apartments, LLC v. City of Evans, Colorado, Case No. 2015 CV 30655 (“the Pending 
Litigation”).  The Pending Litigation involves a dispute as to the park impact fees 
assessed by the City in connection with an apartment complex built by Ashcroft Heights 
Apartments, LLC, commonly referred to as “Ashcroft Apartments”. 
  
B. Independent of the Pending Litigation, an issue exists between the City and one 
or more of the Ehrlich Entities regarding the number of Equivalent Residential Units 
(“EQRs”) that need to be provided to the City in order for the City to provide water 
service to the Ashcroft Apartments (“the Ashcroft Apartments EQR Matter”). 
 
C. ________________________ is the owner of a certain real property parcel 
approximately 15 acres in size  located within the City on the Northwest corner of 37th 
Street and 35th Avenue (“the Commercial Parcel”). 
 
D. Without admitting any factual allegations or liability, the Parties agree that it is 
in their respective best interests to settle and resolve any and all claims, issues, 
judgments, and actions that were or could have been alleged between the Parties as of 
the Effective Date of the Agreement (as defined below) or were or could have been 
alleged as part of the Pending Litigation.  The Parties further agree that it is in their 
respective best interests to memorialize the status of and their agreement related to the 
Ashcroft Apartments EQR Matter and related to the Commercial Parcel. 
 

III. TERMS OF AGREEMENT 
 
In consideration of the promises, mutual releases, agreements, representations, 

warranties, and covenants set forth below, the Parties agree as follows: 



 2 

 
1. Incorporation of Recitals.  The Parties agree that the Recitals above are 

incorporated into and made part of the Agreement.  
 
2. Effective Date of the Agreement.  The Parties agree that the Agreement will 

become effective on July 5, 2016 (“the Effective Date”).     
 
3. Resolution of EQR evaluation and issues. 
 

a. The City hereby acknowledges the existence of 13.75 EQRs in the “Village at 
Ashcroft” water bank account maintained by the City, and agrees that those EQRs 
shall be dedicated for use in development of the Commercial Parcel. 

 
b. As part of the development of the Ashcroft Apartments, one or more of the 

Ehrlich entities dedicated up to 120 EQRs in order to provide water service to the 
Ashcroft Apartments with the understanding that following completion of 
construction, the City would evaluate the actual water consumption of the 
Ashcroft Apartments for a one year period to determine whether all 120 EQRs 
were necessary in order to meet the anticipated water demands of the Ashcroft 
Apartments.  The City has completed an evaluation of the actual water 
consumption for the Ashcroft Apartments and determined that it used 9,752,000 
gallons, representing 65 EQRs.   The Ehrlich Affiliated Entities agree with and 
acknowledge the City’s determination that 65 EQRs are dedicated to the Ashcroft 
Apartments.  The Parties further agree that the remaining 55 EQRs from the 120 
EQRs initially reserved for the Ashcroft Apartments are available and shall be 
transferred for use in developing the Commercial Parcel. 

 
4. Development of Commercial Parcel.  As discussed above, 13.75 EQRs from the 

Village at Ashcroft water bank account maintained by the City, and the 
remaining 55 EQRs initially dedicated but no longer needed for the Ashcroft 
Apartments will be dedicated for use in developing the Commercial Parcel.  The 
number EQRs in addition to these 68.75 EQRs, if any, that will be needed in 
developing the Commercial Parcel will be determined based on the anticipated 
water demand of the proposed development on the Commercial Parcel at the time 
the Ehrlich Affiliated Entities submit their development proposal for the 
Commercial Parcel, in conformance with Evans City Code in effect at that time.  

 
5.  Settlement of the Pending Litigation.  
 

a. As a result of a miscommunication between the Parties, the amount 
ultimately charged to and paid by the Ehrlich Affiliated Entities for park 
impact fees was $28,000 more than the amount apparently communicated 
to Ehrlich by City staff.  The City has agreed to reimburse this amount to 
the Ehrlich Affiliated Entities. 

 



 3 

b. The purpose of City’s park impact fees is, in part, to provide funding for 
park and recreation capital improvements.  The Parties hereby agree and 
the City acknowledges that substantial park and recreation capital 
facilities were provided or constructed by the Ehrlich Entities as part of 
the Ashcroft Apartment development, and that such facilities are available 
to residents of Ashcroft Apartments who, in turn, are residents of the City.  
As a result of the construction of park and recreation capital 
improvements at Ashcroft Apartments, the City has concluded that the use 
of other park and recreational facilities within the City has been reduced 
and therefore, the Ehrlich Affiliated Entities are entitled to be reimbursed 
for $55,000 of the park impact fees previously paid.  

 
c. The $28,000 plus the $55,000 for a total of $83,000 will be paid to 

________ within 30 days of the effective date of the Agreement. 
 
d. Dismissal.  In consideration for the $83,000  payment the Ehrlich 

Affiliated Entitieswill file a motion to dismiss the Pending Litigation with 
prejudice within three (3) days of the payment. 

 
e.  Mutual Release.  For and in consideration of the mutual promises, 

covenants and releases set forth herein, all the Parties hereto do hereby 
voluntarily, knowingly and mutually forever release, discharge and 
relinquish any and all claims, demands, causes of action, choses in action, 
fees, costs, liability, debts, wrongs, damages, complaints, judgments, and 
execution, irrespective of the legal theory upon which they may be based, 
whether in law or in equity, criminal, civil or administrative, whether 
known or unknown, anticipated or unanticipated, direct or indirect, fixed 
or contingent, whether heretofore asserted or not, whether based upon an 
act or an omission, whether for pecuniary on non-pecuniary losses, 
property damages, personal injuries, medical expenses, attorney fees or 
otherwise, against all other parties hereto, which arise out of or are in any 
way connected with the factual basis for the pleadings, discovery or any 
court filings in the Lawsuit or arising by or between them prior to the date 
of the Agreement. 

 
1) This Release is made for the benefit of the Parties hereto and shall 

also be deemed to release all claims any of the Parties have as to 
the subject matter of the Agreement against all party 
representatives, which are hereby defined to include all parties’ 
past or present officers, directors, independent contractors, 
shareholders, employees, principals, managing brokers, managers, 
agents, supervisors, subrogees, insurance carriers, reinsurance 
carriers, employers, liquidators, related corporations, attorneys and 
subsidiaries, and all past, present, or future trustees, heirs, 
devisees, legatees, beneficiaries, guardians, representatives, 
successors, conservators, receivers, transferees, and assigns. 



 4 

 
2) It is also expressly understood that the release of claims against any 

person or entity named or designated herein shall also be deemed to 
constitute a release of all persons or entities that are or may be 
liable, whether under the doctrine of respondeat superior or 
otherwise, for any conduct, act, or omission of the person being 
released. 

 
3)   Except as necessary to enforce the terms and provisions of the 

Agreement, the Parties agree not to sue, nor to initiate or prosecute 
any legal, equitable, criminal or administrative proceedings against 
any party or any party representative with respect to the subject 
matter of the Agreement or for any claims arising by or between 
the Parties hereto that predate the Agreement. 

 
f. Representations.  
 

1) The undersigned signatories who sign in a representative capacity 
on behalf of any person or entity represent and warrant that they 
are authorized and directed by the said person or entity for which 
they execute the Agreement so to execute the Agreement on behalf 
of such person or entity. 

 
2) Each of the Parties further represents, warrants, and agrees as 

follows: 
 

They have read the Agreement and are fully aware of and 
understand its contents and agree that it shall act as a general 
release as to the subject matter of the Agreement; 

 
They are now and have been represented by counsel in connection 
with their claims and defenses in this matter and have had the 
benefit of any legal advice they desire in regard to the drafting and 
execution of the Agreement; 

 
They have independently sought and received any tax or accounting 
advice that they desire in conjunction with the execution of the 
Agreement and its tax and accounting implications to them or have 
voluntarily elected to proceed without such advice; 

 
They voluntarily execute the Agreement without any undue 
pressure or influence by any person and, except as specifically set 
forth herein, no party has relied upon any representation, promise 
or statement of any other party including, but not limited to, any 
agents, employees, representatives, officers, directors, owners, 



 5 

partners, shareholders and attorneys of any other party to or 
beneficiary of the Agreement; 

 
Each individual, and not a legal entity, executing the Agreement is 
over the age of twenty-one years, is under no disability, is of sound 
mind and condition, is fully competent to understand the terms of 
the Agreement, and is able and authorized to execute the 
Agreement on behalf of any person or entity for whom they purport 
to execute the Agreement; 
 
They have neither granted nor made any assignment, subrogation or 
other right of substitution to any person of their rights against any 
party with respect to the subject matter of the Agreement, and that 
they are not aware of any person or entity who may pursue, who 
may be entitled to pursue, or who intends to pursue any claims 
derivative of or in any way relating to the subject matter of the 
Agreement; 

 
They are fully informed as to the nature, extent, effects and 
consequences of signing this Agreement and of the rights they are 
forever forgoing as a result of executing the Agreement; 

 
They understand that any presumptions, assumptions or beliefs they 
may have formed regarding the liability, if any, of any other 
person, or of the severity, amount, likelihood or nature of any 
losses, damages, or injuries they may have suffered or may suffer, 
or that any assumptions regarding the availability of any remedy 
for any such alleged damages or injuries, could be erroneous, and 
that any losses, damages or injuries they may have suffered or they 
may in the future suffer or discover may be more sever or extensive 
than presently anticipated or believed, and that they voluntarily 
assume the risk of executing the Agreement notwithstanding these 
possibilities; 

 
They understand that the consideration referenced the Agreement 
and other mutual promises and covenants expressly set forth in the 
Agreement constitute the only consideration or value they will 
receive in conjunction with the Agreement and the claims being 
resolved and released by the execution of the Agreement, and that 
they hereby waive all claims to assert that the Agreement is 
unenforceable or invalid due to any lack or failure of consideration; 
and 

 
They understand that this is a binding and enforceable agreement 
and that it may be submitted to a court or other entity, agency, or 



 6 

administration to prove the existence of the Agreement or for 
enforcement. 

 
g. Attorney Fees.  In the event of default by any party of any obligation 

under the Agreement, the prevailing party in any proceeding to enforce 
the terms of the Agreement shall be entitled to recover their attorney fees 
and costs associated with responding to or prosecuting such action. 

 
h.  No admission of liability.  The Agreement constitutes a full and final 

settlement of disputed claims by and between the Parties.  The execution 
of the Agreement shall not be in any manner construed as an admission of 
liability on the part of any party, and all the Parties specifically and 
expressly disclaim any liability or wrongdoing. 

 
6. Miscellaneous. 
 

a. Severability. Every provision of the Agreement is intended to be 
severable.  Accordingly, in the event any provision is declared illegal, 
invalid, or otherwise unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, 
such illegality, invalidity, or unenforceability shall not effect the 
remaining provisions, which shall remain fully valid, binding, and 
enforceable. 
 

b. Choice of Law. The Agreement shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Colorado. 
 

c. Entire Agreement. The Agreement is fully integrated, containing the entire 
agreement and understanding between the Parties, superceding and 
replacing all prior negotiations and proposed agreements, written or oral. 
 

d. Binding Agreement. The Parties agree that the Agreement shall be binding 
upon all the Parties who execute the Agreement, irrespective of whether it 
is approved by any Court and irrespective of whether the Agreement was 
the result, indirect or direct, of any mediation or other alternative dispute 
resolution. 
 

e. Counterpart Execution. The Agreement may be executed in multiple 
counterparts, including facsimiles, each of which when taken together 
shall be deemed an original.  

 
f. Further Assurances.  Each of the Parties agrees to execute all documents 

and use reasonable efforts to take all other actions necessary to carry out 
the purposes of and obligations created by the Agreement. 

 



 7 

g. Amendments.  Any amendment to the Agreement shall not be effective 
unless in writing and signed by all the Parties.  The Agreement may 
not be amended or modified by oral agreement. 

 
h. Waiver.  Any waiver by a party of any provision of the Agreement 

shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any other provision of the 
Agreement or a waiver of a subsequent breach of the same provision, 
unless such waiver is expressed in writing signed by the party to be 
bound. 

 
 

ASHCROFT HEIGHTS APARTMENTS, LLC  
 
 
 
______________________________________________ 
By:  ____________________________ 
Its:  ____________________________ 
 
 
 
THE VILLAGE AT ASHCROFT, LLC 
 
 
 
______________________________________________ 
By:  ____________________________ 
Its:  ____________________________ 
 
 
 
XXX  [insert name of owner of the Commercial Parcel] 
 
 
 
______________________________________________   
By:  ____________________________ 
Its:  ____________________________ 
 
 
 
SCOTT EHRLICH 
 
 
 
______________________________________________ 



 8 

 
 
ATTEST:      CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 
 
 
__________________________________ BY:_____________________________ 
Raegan Robb, City Clerk      John L. Morris, Mayor 

 
 
 



 AMENDMENT TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT  
(TUSCANY SUBDIVISION) 

 
 
THIS AGREEMENT is entered into this _____ day of_____________________, 2016, by and 
between the CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO, a Colorado home rule municipality, (“the City”) 
and RICHMARK REAL ESTATE PARTNERS, LLC (“Richmark”). 
 
WHEREAS, certain real property (“the Development”) located within the City was previously 
subdivided and platted as specifically described in the plat approved by the City for Tuscany 
Subdivision – First Filing and recorded on March 12, 2000 with the Weld County Clerk and 
Record at Reception No. 2756849, as subsequently modified and replatted, in part, as Tuscany – 
Second Filing, recorded on January 14, 2001 at Reception No. 2616649; and 
 
WHEREAS, in connection with the development of the Tuscany Subdivision, the City and the 
Developer entered into a Public Improvements Developers Agreement for City of Evans 
(Tuscany – First Filing) dated on or about September 27, 2000, as amended (“the Development 
Agreement”), which Development Agreement was recorded at Reception No. 2799495 of the 
records of the Weld County Clerk and Recorder.  Pursuant to the provisions of the recorded 
Development Agreement, each successor to the lots in the Development, other than the purchaser 
of a single family residence, assumed the obligations of the Developer with regard to the 
property purchased within the Tuscany Development; and 
 
WHEREAS, Richmark, as the owner of the real property which is a portion of the Development  
described in Exhibit A (“Richmark Phase II Lots”), is the successor in interest to the developer in 
relation to the  Richmark Phase II Lots; and 
 
WHEREAS, Chapter 13.08 of the Evans Municipal Code requires that the developer of real 
property with the City provide Equivalent Residential Units (“EQRs”) to the City based on the 
anticipated water demands of the development; and 
 
WHEREAS, the issuance of building permits in connection with the Richmark Phase II Lots 
contemplated the provision by the Developer of EQRs in the amounts set forth in Exhibit B; and 
 
WHEREAS, no EQRs are appurtenant to Phase II Lots within the Development at this time, 
including the Richmark Phase II Lots; and 
 
WHEREAS, despite the lack of EQRs appurtenant to lots in Phase II, it appears the City 
inadvertently issued some permits for the construction of homes and that such homes have been 
constructed in whole or in part; and 
 
WHEREAS, many of the improvements the Developer is obligated to make under the 
Development Agreement, including but not limited to a non-potable water system and associated 
water rights,  have not been constructed or provided; and 



WHEREAS despite the lack of completion of many of the improvements by the Developer or its 
successors, Richmark has requested that it be permitted to proceed with obtaining building 
permits and constructing homes on the Richmark Phase II Lots, 
 
WHEREAS, Richmark has further requested that it be allowed to obtain building permits for the 
Richmark Phase II Lots without providing EQRs, and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has an interest in stimulating the construction of homes within the 
Development but also has an interest in preserving its water rights portfolio. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual obligations and covenants set forth herein, 
and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which are hereby 
acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 
 

1. Provisions of EQRs for Richmark Phase II Lots. The City agrees that for each of the 
Richmark Phase II Lots identified on Exhibit A, Richmark may satisfy the EQR 
requirements for the lot by (1) providing one-half the number of EQRs associated with 
the lot as designated in Exhibit B, or (2) paying a fee in lieu of such EQR for one-half of 
the number of EQRs associated with the lot in Exhibit B, based on a per EQR price of 
$16,680.    By way of example, if the lot has an assigned EQR value of 1.0 EQRs, then 
Richmark may satisfy the EQR requirement for that lot by providing the City 0.5 EQRs 
or paying the City $8,340 in lieu of providing such EQRs.  The City may adjust the fee in 
lieu no more often than once a year, using the same methodology used to determine the 
figure of $16,680, with appropriate adjustments for inflation. 

 
2. EQRs for other Phase II Lots.  Upon execution of an amendment to the Development 

Agreement similar to this Agreement, the City will offer an equivalent option to the other 
owners of undeveloped lots in Phase II identified in Exhibit B so that all remaining 
owners of undeveloped lots in Phase II will be treated equally with regard to the EQRs 
for Phase II.  Adjustments may be made by the City in such other agreements based on 
changes in the cost of providing an EQR at the time of the agreements. 

 
3. Other Developer Obligations.  Nothing in this Agreement is intended to nor shall it be 

construed to modify the other obligations of the Developer or its successors under the 
Development Agreement, including but not limited to the obligation to design, construct, 
and provide water rights for a non-potable system for the Tuscany Subdivision.  Nor shall 
this Agreement be construed in any manner to limit the ability or authority of the City or 
any entity created by the City such as a special improvement district, to construct and/or 
provide financing for the construction of any of the improvements contemplated in the 
Development Agreement, including but not limited to the non-potable water system. 

 
4.  Effect on Development Agreement.  Except as specifically amended herein, the 

Development Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 
 

5. Disclosure to prospective purchasers.  To ensure that prospective purchasers of the 
Richmark Phase II Lots and other similarly situated Phase II lot purchasers are aware of 



the status of the non-potable water system and possible assessments related to providing 
such system, Richmark shall provide prospective purchasers with a copy of the 
Disclosure Notice attached as Exhibit C and shall obtain the prospective purchasers 
signature on such Disclosure.  No certificate of occupancy will be issued by the City until 
the City building official receives the signed Disclosure. 

 
6. Authority and Non-Assignment.  The Parties expressly warrant to each other that they 

have authority to enter into, and perform, this Agreement, and further expressly warrant 
and represent that they have not sold, assigned, granted or transferred to any other person 
or entity, any claim, action, demand, cause of action or damages released by this 
Agreement. 

 
7. Survival of Covenants and Warranties.  All covenants and warranties contained in this 

Agreement are contractual and not mere recitals, and shall survive the closing of this 
Agreement. 

 
8. Successors and Assigns.  This Agreement shall be binding upon the Parties, their heirs, 

administrators, representatives, executors, successors and assigns, and shall inure to the 
benefit of the Parties, and their agents, heirs, administrators, representatives, executors, 
successors and assigns.  The rights and obligations under this Agreement shall be 
appurtenant to and shall run with and be binding on the Development in perpetuity.   

 
9. Governing Law.  This Agreement is made and entered into within the State of Colorado 

and shall in all respects be interpreted, enforced, and governed under the laws of the State 
of Colorado.  The language of this Agreement shall in all cases be construed as a whole, 
according to its fair meaning and not strictly for or against either of the Parties. 

 
10. Severability.  Should any provision of this Agreement be declared or be determined by 

any court, to be illegal or invalid, the validity of the remaining parts, terms or provisions 
of this Agreement shall not be affected and any illegal or invalid part, term, or provision, 
should not be deemed to be a part of this Agreement. 

 
11. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of 

which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall be deemed one and the 
same instrument. 

 
12. Waiver.  No term or condition of this Agreement shall be deemed to have been waived, 

nor shall there be an estoppel against the enforcement of any provision of this 
Agreement, except by written instruments signed by the party charged with the waiver or 
estoppel. No written waiver shall be deemed a continuing waiver unless specifically 
stated therein, and the written waiver shall operate only as to the specific term or 
condition waived, but not for the future or as to any act other than that specifically 
waived. 

 
13. Breach or Default.  Nothing in this Agreement will be construed so as to impair any legal 

or equitable right of either party to enforce any of the terms of this Agreement by any 



means, including, without limitation, an action for damages or a suit to obtain specific 
performance of any or all of the terms of this Agreement.  Before filing an action for 
damages or specific performance, however, the aggrieved party shall first notify the other 
party in writing of the alleged breach or default and shall give the other party a 
reasonable opportunity to correct the alleged breach or default. 

 
14. Notices.  All notices and other communications that are required or permitted under this 

Agreement shall be in writing and shall be sufficient if mailed by first class mail, postage 
prepaid, to the addresses specified below or to such other address as the City and 
Richmark shall have specified by notice in writing to the other party.  All such notices 
shall be deemed to have been received on the date of delivery thereof or the third 
business day after the mailing thereof, whichever is the earlier.    
 
City of Evans:  
 

Fred Starr 
Director of Public Works 
City of Evans 
1100 37th Street 
Evans, CO 80620 
 
Scotty P. Krob 
KROB LAW OFFICE, LLC 
8400 E. Prentice Ave. 
Penthouse 
Greenwood Village, CO 80111 
 

Richmark Real Estate Partners, LLC: 
 

Tyler Richardson 
Richmark Real Estate Partners, LLC 
5200 W. 20th Street 
Greeley, CO 80634 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SIGNATURE APPEAR ON FOLLOWING PAGE 
 
 
 



 
 
 
ATTEST:     CITY OF EVANS 
 

 
________________________________ By:        
Raegan Robb, Evans City Clerk    John L. Morris, Mayor 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO SUBSTANCE: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Aden Hogan, Evans City Manager 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Scott Krob, Evans City Attorney 

 
 
 
 

RICHMARK REAL ESTATE PARTNERS, 
LLC 

  
 

By:       ______ 
Name: ____________________________________ 
Title: _____________________________________       

 
  



Exhibit A 
 
 
Parcel 1:  
Lots 10 and 11, Block 12, Tuscany - First Filing, a Subdivision in the City of Evans, County of 
Weld, State of Colorado.  
Parcel 2:  
Lots 31 through 38, inclusive, Block 12,  
Lots 8 through 11, inclusive, Block 14,  
Lots 1 through 5, inclusive, and Lots 11 and 12, and Lots 18 through 21, inclusive, Block 16,  
Lots 1 through 4, inclusive, Block 17,  
Lots 2 through 22, inclusive, Block 18,  
Tuscany-First Filing, a subdivision of the City of Evans, County of Weld, State of Colorado.  
AND  
Lots 1 through 8, inclusive, Block 15,  
Lots 1 through 7, inclusive, Block 15A, Tuscany-First Filing, Replat of Block 15, a subdivision of the City 
of Evans, County of Weld, State of Colorado.  



 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT  B 
 
 























EXHIBIT C 

 

DISCLOSURE NOTICE 

 

To the purchaser of the following described property: 

[Insert legal description] 

 

Also known as: 

[Insert street address] 

 

The property you are purchasing is part of the Tuscany Development.  When the City of Evans 
approved the Tuscany Development, it was contemplated that the developer would provide a 
non-potable water system, including the necessary water rights to supply that system.  That non-
potable water system has not yet been constructed.  The purpose of this disclosure notice is to let 
you know that the City of Evans may install a non-potable water system in connection with the 
Tuscany Development at some time in the future and assess the properties within the Tuscany 
development, including the property you are purchasing, fees or other charges for the costs of 
providing the system.   

 

Homebuilder:_____________________________________________ ______________ 
          Date 
 
 
Purchaser: _______________________________________________ _______________ 
          Date  
 
 
Purchaser: _______________________________________________ _______________ 
          Date  
 



 

   City Manager - Monitoring Report 

July 5, 2016 
 

Below is a compellation of updates and projects that are either new  
or have changed since the last City Council meeting. 

 
 

 
 Human Resources 

Staff completed the benefit insurance renewal process.  Medical insurance coverage was renewed with 
Colorado Employer Benefit Trust (CEBT). The City has been a member of this multiple employer trust for 
public agencies, since January 1, 2013.  CEBT has over 300 participating groups and 27,000 members.  
CEBT’s overall financial condition remains healthy; membership is growing and the trust has healthy 
reserves in place. To control costs, the City made two medical plan design changes.  This resulted in an 
average increase was 7.4% for the City’s three medical plan designs.  The City will also be transitioning 
to a 1/1 insurance renewal in order to align the plan year with the benefit year. 

 
Staff completed four City Open Enrollment presentations.  Staff processed employee open enrollment 
elections.  Open enrollment elections were effective July 1st. 

 
 

 Public Works 
*See the attached photos of the bridge deck repair, which was completed by July 1st.   
   



                    

 
 
*Emergency concrete pipe replacement work was completed on approximately 330’ of 18” RCP 
irrigation pipe on Golden Street.  Existing pipe had reached its life span as it was 50+ years old.  There 
had been several leaks from this section of pipe and a section ultimately gave way and broke.     
 

 
 
*The Hwy 85 Access Control Project is currently out to bid.  The bid opening is scheduled for July 19th.  
 

 
 


	1. CALL TO ORDER
	2. PLEDGE
	3. ROLL CALL
	4. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION
	5. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	6. CONSENT AGENDA
	6.A-Approval of Minutes
	06.20.2016 Regular Meeting Draft Minutes_final

	7. OLD BUSINESS
	7.A DCP Gas Line July 5, 2016
	DCP Midland Rev. Righ-of-way
	Right of Way Agreement Template-Evans Riverside Rev 7-05

	8. NEW BUSINESS
	8.A-2016 Budget Rev #2
	Ordinance No. 653-16 - 2016 Budget Rev #2
	2016 Budget Rev #2

	8.B Reso 27-2016 DERA
	Reso 27-2016 DERA

	8.C HS Grant Application
	Reso 28-2016 Homeland Security Grant

	8.D-Ashcroft settlement
	Ashcroft Agreement - 6.29.16

	8.E-Amendment to Tuscany Development Agreement - 6.13.16
	Exhibit A - Legal description - Richmark II Lots
	Exhibit B - f-jm-es-2.13.03
	Exhibit C - Disclosure Notice-6.13.16


	9. REPORTS
	7-5-2016 Monitoring Report

	10. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION
	11. ADJOURNMENT

